
Please ask for  Julie Britton DDI (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information 
only

Committee - GOVERNANCE & AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 3rd October, 2019 at 10.00 am

Venue - Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, 
Elizabeth House, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least 
two working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is 

available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.

Members

Mr W.P. Borrett (Chairman)
Mr R.G. Kybird (Vice-Chairman)
Mr H. E. J. Clarke

Mrs E. Grey
Mrs J. James
Mrs L.H. Monument

Democratic Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE

Date: Tuesday, 24 September 2019

Public Document Pack





Governance & Audit Committee
03 October 2019

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES 5 - 11
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2019.

2. ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (IF ANY) (STANDING ITEM) 

3. APOLOGIES 
To receive apologies for absence.

4. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.

5. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire 
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 
2011.  Members are also required to withdraw from the meeting room as 
stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

6. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.

7. TRAINING (STANDING ITEM) 
To note if there are any training issues/ requests.

8. PROCESS FOR AMENDING THE CONSTITUTION 12 - 14
Report of Mark Stinson, Executive Manager for Governance.

9. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019 15 - 38
Report of the External Auditor.

10. CIPFA AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF-ASSESSMENT 39 - 42
Verbal report by Faye Haywood, Head of Internal Audit.

Please find attached a copy of the questionnaire.  

11. WORK PROGRAMME 43 - 44
A copy of the Committee’s work programme is attached.  The Committee is 
asked to consider whether any additions, deletions or amendments to the 
programme are required.



Governance & Audit Committee
03 October 2019

Page(s)
herewith

12. NEXT MEETING 
To note the arrangements for the next meeting to be held on Thursday, 12 
December 2019 at 2pm in the Norfolk Room, Dereham.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT TRAINING
A Treasury Management training session will take place immediately 
following the meeting facilitated by Richard Dunlop from Link Asset Services. 

Lunch will be provided after the training session.



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

Held on Thursday, 25 July 2019 at 10.00 am in
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham

PRESENT
Mr W.P. Borrett (Chairman)
Mr R.G. Kybird (Vice-Chairman)
Mr H. E. J. Clarke

Mrs J. James
Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr R.W. Duffield (Substitute Member)
Mr J Plaskett (Independent Lay Advisor)

Also Present
Mr J.P. Cowen Mr T. Birt

In Attendance
Ross Bangs - Corporate Innovation, Change & 

Performance Manager (shared)
Alison Chubbock - Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151 

Officer) (BDC)
Mark Hodgson - Lead Audit Partner
Rory Ringer - Democratic Services Manager
Mark Stinson - Executive Manager Governance (Deputy 

Monitoring Officer)
Julie Britton - Democratic Services Officer

Action By
36/19 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1) 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2019 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

37/19 ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (IF ANY) (STANDING ITEM) 
(AGENDA ITEM 2) 

Under Minute No. 32/19, Councillor James asked if a response had been 
received to Councillor Kybird’s question in relation to the Constitution 
review.

The Chairman, Councillor Borrett advised that he had been informed that 
such a review was not under the Governance & Audit Committee’s remit; 
however, he would be happy to put this question to the Executive 
Member.

The Vice-Chairman, Councillor Kybird felt that there should be a specialist 
sub-group set up to look at the list of responsibilities under each 
Committee.  

It was agreed that a Legal Officer attends a future meeting to discuss this 
matter further<1>.

Mark 
Stinson 

38/19 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 3) 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Grey.  Councillor 
Duffield was in attendance as her substitute.

5

Agenda Item 1



Governance & Audit Committee
25 July 2019

2

Action By
39/19 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 4) 

None.

40/19 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (AGENDA ITEM 5) 

None declared.

41/19 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA 
ITEM 6) 

Councillor Birt was in attendance to observe the meeting.

42/19 TRAINING (STANDING ITEM) (AGENDA ITEM 7) 

Both the Vice-Chairman and Councillor James had attended the training 
held at the Broads Authority on 11 June 2019 and recommended the 
training to the remaining Committee Members who had not been able to 
attend.

The Chairman stated that Members would be informed if the training was 
repeated.  Councillor Birt had also attended the aforementioned training 
session and felt that it could have included more detail.

43/19 Q1 STRATEGIC RISK REPORT (AGENDA ITEM 8) 

At this point of the meeting the Chairman read aloud the exclusion of 
press and public paragraph under Agenda item 15 to enable the Capita 
Risk report at Agenda item 16 to be discussed.

Councillor Birt then queried the exclusion paragraph under Agenda item 
15.  The proposal was explained and it was agreed that this matter would 
be clarified with a Legal Officer who would be attending the meeting for 
Agenda item 12.
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as contained in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act.

The Corporate Innovation, Change & Performance Manager presented 
the status of the Council’s 14 strategic risks as of the end of quarter 1 
19/20.

He apologised for an error on the heat map matrix as the risk relating to 
ICT security had been reduced from a high risk to a medium risk.

The risk relating to the Council’s ability to maximise income from its asset 
portfolio remained static.

Referring to the risk report on page 19 of the agenda pack in relation to 
the impact of the Homelessness Reduction Act, Members were informed 
that the Team were still facing sustained levels of unprecedented demand 
and the findings and action plan from the review of the Housing Service 
facilitated by the LGA were still on-going.

6



Governance & Audit Committee
25 July 2019

3

Action By

The Vice-Chairman pointed out that the Overview & Scrutiny Commission 
was well aware of this issue and had added Housing to its work 
programme for a future meeting.

Referring to page 21 of the agenda pack, Members were made aware 
that there had been a sharp increase to the Council’s turnover rate; 
however, following a trend analysis being carried out it had been found 
that there was no cause for concern.

It was noted that the risk report had been reviewed by relevant Directors. 

Councillor James for the sharp increase to staff recruitment and retention 
to be explained.  Members were informed that this was a seasonal 
occurrence and was not exclusive to local authorities.

In response to a question, Members were informed that short term 
contracts were featured in the performance measures.

Mr Plaskett felt that the rating for the homelessness target would be 
difficult to reduce and did not believe that the target set would be met.

In response, the Corporate Innovation, Change & Performance Manager 
completely agreed.  There was no quick fix and this had already been 
included on the aforementioned Action Plan.

The Vice-Chairman felt that part of the solution to the investment asset 
portfolio was the development of the property in Thetford.  Members were 
informed that this risk had an impact on the Council’s ability to reduce 
homelessness.

It was therefore agreed that the target date should be changed from 31 
October 19 to 31 March 2020.  

On page 20 of the agenda pack, under Contracts Monitoring, it was 
agreed that the target date be changed from 31 July 2019 to 31 
December 2019 to take account of the pending Brexit result.

Mr Plaskett said that he would be reluctant to remove the ICT security 
breach risk anytime soon.  The Chairman felt that the Team should be 
congratulated as given the length of time it had been on the risk register 
the current risk score had never changed.

The critical risk for staff recruitment would be removed but would remain 
as an operational risk. The Chairman asked that the Operational Risk 
Register be brought to a future Governance & Audit Committee meeting.  
It was agreed that this would be brought forward in Q2.

Mr Plaskett felt that risks should move from red to amber then green 
before it was removed from the critical risk register.  The Corporate 
Innovation, Change & Performance Manager agreed and would take this 
suggestion forward.

An informal resolution was then proposed and agreed that a risk must not 
be removed in its entirety until the risk score was green.

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

7



Governance & Audit Committee
25 July 2019

4

Action By
Councillor Monument asked if the ICT risk could be reduced to 2.  
Members were informed that this had to remain on the register due to the 
constant evolution of this risk.

It was agreed that the target date for the Medium Term Financial Plan on 
page 22 of the agenda pack would be moved to end of December 2019.

It was further agreed that risk under failure to deliver the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities would be removed.

Due to it achieving its target date, it was agreed that the risk relating to 
impact of County Council budget reductions would be moved from a 
critical risk to an operational risk.

The Capita Service risk would remain   Councillor Clarke asked if the time 
scale for the comments received from the Planning Inspector in relation to 
the Local Plan were reflected in the target score.  Members were 
informed that this information would be reported back to the next 
Governance & Audit Committee meeting. 

Referring to the General Data Protection Regulations implementation, the 
Vice-Chairman reported that all Members had been asked to participate in 
an on-line test and further asked if this training would reduce the risk.  
Councillor Birt said that he was not aware of such a test.  In response to 
concerns about whether the training had been offered to all Members, the 
Corporate Innovation, Change & Performance Manager said that he 
would discuss the matter with Kirsty Mallett, the Information Governance 
Officer. 

Subject to the aforementioned amendments and recommendations, the 
contents of the report were otherwise noted.

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs

Ross
Bangs/
Kirsty 
Mallett

44/19 AUDIT RESULTS REPORT (AGENDA ITEM 9) 

Referring to the query in respect of the exclusion of press and public 
paragraph, Mark Hodgson, the External Auditor for Ernst & Young 
advised that the paragraph number used was, in fact, incorrect.  It was 
agreed that this matter would be picked up with Mark Stinson, the 
Council’s Executive Manager for Governance.

The report summarised the preliminary audit conclusion in relation to the 
audit of Breckland Council 2018/19.

Key findings from the 2018/19 audit and the areas of work that had been 
covered were explained in great detail by the Audit Partner. He updated 
the Committee on the status of the audit and the results of procedures 
completed since the date of the report. In summary, there were no further 
issues to bring to the Committee’s attention. As a result, an unqualified 
audit opinion on the financial statements was proposed subject to the 
completion of the remaining outstanding items. However, the Partner had 
noted, that as they had audited and reported against the significant audit 
risks, there was a low risk of any material amendments being required.

The Finance Team were thanked for their unprecedented cooperation.

Referring to the draft financial Statements, Members were informed that 

8



Governance & Audit Committee
25 July 2019

5

Action By
the materiality assessment level had been updated to £1.4million.

Members’ attention was then drawn to page 38 of the Agenda pack, the 
Pension Liability Valuation where it was explained that estimates and 
other audit changes from the pension scheme audit had increased the 
pension liability by £925k.  The audited Statement of Accounts had been 
adjusted accordingly; however, this increase could have implications on 
the budget going forward.

The CIPFA Code of Practice on local authority accounting (the Code) 
required the Council to comply with the requirements of two new 
accounting standards for 2018/19 new accounting standards highlighted 
on page 39 of the agenda pack could give rise to changes to the accounts 
in future.

Councillor Cowen, the Executive Member for Finance & Growth thanked 
the External Auditor for all his hard work.

The External Auditor drew attention to the Value for Money graph on page 
50 of the agenda pack as he felt that this would be useful for Members as 
it was his pessimistic view of what could happen in the next few years. 
The Chairman felt that the VFM graph was quite positive and financially 
robust.

In response to a question about non-domestic rate retention, Members 
were informed that this had not been included due to the uncertainty of 
future funding levels 

The recommendations had been amended accordingly to take account of 
the completed audit.

Subject to further testing on the remaining outstanding items; it was:

RESOLVED that the Audit Results report be noted.

45/19 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-19 (AGENDA ITEM 10) 

Alison Chubbock, the Chief Accountant presented the audited Statement 
of Accounts 2018-19.

Members were informed that except for an increase in the pension liability 
from £51,177k to £52,252k (as mentioned in the previous agenda item) 
only a small number of minor changes had been made to the Statement 
of Accounts.

Attention was drawn to the recommendations that had been amended to 
take account of the completed audit.  The Chairman suggested that 
additional wording should be added to the second recommendation, to 
read:

“delegated authority be given to the S151 Officer in conjunction with the 
Chairman of the Governance & Audit Committee to approve any further 
amendments to the Statement of Accounts 2018-19” .

Councillor Duffield did not support the second recommendation in its 
entirety as he felt that any further amendments should not be delegated.  

9



Governance & Audit Committee
25 July 2019

6

Action By
The Chief Accountant assured Members that there should not be any 
additional major amendments.

Referring to the pension reserves on page 87 of the agenda pack, Mr 
Plaskett asked if the narrative had been changed.  Members were 
informed that the narrative had changed to reflect the £925k - the pension 
liability had been the only change to the numbers within the accounts.

The Vice-Chairman queried the Heritage Assets on page 107 of the 
agenda pack.  He had noticed that the Ancient House Museum had not 
been included even though Breckland Council paid the insurance on it.  
He asked the Chief Accountant to find out if Breckland owned the building 
as Norfolk County Council did not believe it belonged to them.  Members 
were informed that Ancient House came under White Hart Street on the 
Asset Register but did not meet the accounting criteria to be classed as a 
heritage asset, so was included in the accounts under property.

RESOLVED that:

1)
a) the Statement of Accounts 2018-19 be approved;
b) the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2018-19 be approved; 

and
c) the letter of representation 2018-19 be approved.

2) delegated authority be given to the Chairman of the Governance & 
Audit Committee in conjunction with the S151 Officer to approve any 
further amendments to the Statement of Accounts 2018-19. 

46/19 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUT-TURN 2018-19 (AGENDA ITEM 11) 

The Chief Accountant presented the annual report.

Attention was drawn to section 2 of the report on page 189 of the agenda 
pack where it highlighted the overall treasury position as at 31 March 
2019.  It was noted that no borrowing had been undertaken for capital 
purposes and the statutory borrowing limit had not been breached.

An update from Link Asset Services, the Councils Treasury Management 
Advisors, on the economy and interest rates had been attached at 
Appendix A, for information purposes.

Attention was then drawn to the table at section 2 of the report and the 
table at section 2.2 of Appendix B which showed £3m less than the 
estimate at the start of the year due to delays in the capital programme 
spend and this had an impact on the investment balances held.

The Chairman felt that zero borrowing was quite an unusual position for a 
local authority to be in - a positive for Breckland Council.

In response to a question, Members were informed that the acronym HRA 
stood for Housing Revenue Account.

Councillor Duffield asked if there was much money remaining in the 
Icelandic Accounts.  The Chief Accountant advised that only one bank 
remained with only £30k outstanding with 5% to 6% interest being paid.

10



Governance & Audit Committee
25 July 2019

7

Action By

Mr Plaskett thanked the Chief Accountant for an excellent report.

RESOLVED that:

1) the Treasury Management stewardship report for 2018/19 at 
Appendix B and Appendix C be noted; and

RECOMMEND to Council that:

2) the actual 2018/19 prudential indictors be approved.

47/19 ANNUAL REPORT ON STANDARDS ARRANGEMENTS (AGENDA 
ITEM 12) 

Rory Ringer, the Democratic Services Manager presented the 6th annual 
report since the new regime came into effect in July 2012.

Further detail was provided on the nature of the complaints and the status 
of these complaints since March 2019. 

In response to a concern, it was noted that the 10 complaints for 2017-18 
had been dealt with and there were 3 new ones for 2018-19.

The report was otherwise noted.

48/19 WORK PROGRAMME (AGENDA ITEM 13) 

It was agreed the following items be added to the Work Programme:

 Constitution (Governance & Audit Committee - Terms of 
Reference/delegations) – for the October meeting

 Review of Standards Arrangements – for the December meeting

MStinson/
RRinger/
SWS

49/19 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 14) 

The arrangements for the next meeting on Thursday, 3 October 2019 at 
10am in the Norfolk Room were noted.

50/19 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC (AGENDA ITEM 15) 

See Minute No. 43/19 above.

51/19 Q1 STRATEGIC RISK REPORT (AGENDA ITEM 16) 

See Minute No. 43/19 above.

Member Training: Dealing with Standards Cases

Following the meeting a training session took place facilitated by Mark 
Stinson, the Executive Manager for Governance and Rory Ringer, the 
Democratic Services Manager.

The meeting closed at 11.25 am CHAIRMAN

11



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager for Governance 

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 3 October 2019

Author: Mark Stinson, Executive Manager for Governance

Subject: Process for amending the Constitution 

Purpose: To consider the current process for amending the constitution and whether 
changes to that process are considered appropriate.

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee considers whether it wishes to have a greater role in considering 
proposed changes to the Constitution and if so that (i) the Committee’s involvement be 
limited to proposed changes that are substantive in nature (the question as to whether an 
amendment is substantive to be agreed with the Chairman of the Committee); and (ii) the 
Executive Manager for Governance be instructed to submit to Council the necessary 
constitutional changes to enable this. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 At its meeting on 25 July 2019, the Governance and Audit Committee asked the Executive 
Manager for Governance to prepare a report to the Committee setting out (i) its current 
role in constitutional changes; and (ii) what would be required to enable greater 
involvement of the Committee in such changes.

1.2 Under Article 14 of the Council’s Constitution, changes to the Constitution may only be 
approved by the Full Council unless, in the reasonable opinion of the Monitoring Officer, a 
change is:

(a) a minor variation; or
(b) required to be made to remove any inconsistency or ambiguity; or
(c) required to be made so as to put into effect any decision of the Council or its 

committees or the Cabinet,

In these cases the Monitoring Officer may make such a change and such change shall 
come into force with immediate effect but shall (unless a minor typographical, referencing 
or numbering change) be referred to Full Council as soon as is reasonably possible and 
shall continue to have effect only if Full Council agree. Minor typographical, referencing 
and numbering changes do not require the approval of Full Council.

1.3 As a matter of process, most proposed constitutional changes are reported directly to 
Council. However, where there are proposed changes that would have a significant 
impact on the work or role of a committee, such proposals are first submitted to the 
relevant committee for debate and discussion prior to being reported to Council. A recent 
example was the proposed changes to Planning Committee delegations, which the 
Planning Committee considered and then recommended to Council.

1.4 No individual standing committee has previously had general responsibility for reviewing 
proposed constitutional changes. Full Council did establish a working group in 2013 

12

Agenda Item 8



(comprising three members) who, working with three South Holland members, undertook 
a comprehensive review of both councils’ constitutions. The Working Party was appointed 
directly by Council and its work concluded in late 2015. It is not anticipated that we will 
need to conduct such a comprehensive review again as the current constitution is kept 
under on-going review with regular reports to Council.

1.5 If the Committee were minded to seek an on-going role in reviewing the Constitution, this 
would require Council approval and suitable changes to the Constitution. 

1.6 It should be noted that changing the Constitution can already be a lengthy process, 
especially as reports are already taken to any relevant committee and/or the Cabinet 
where the proposed changes impact on that committee/Cabinet. If constitution reports are 
routinely required to be considered by the Governance and Audit Committee, this would 
take place after any affected committee/Cabinet has been consulted – which could result 
in significant delay in seeking constitutional change.

1.7 If the Committee considers that it should nevertheless oversee all constitutional changes, 
then changes to the Constitution would be required to Article 14 and to the Terms of 
Reference for the Governance and Audit Committee. In order to minimise unnecessary 
delays, it would be preferable to limit the Committee’s role to substantive changes (so not 
to include the matters listed in (a)-(c) of paragraph 1.2 above).

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To continue with the current practice of consulting the Cabinet and/or relevant committees 
where any proposed constitutional change has a substantive impact on that body, prior to 
submission to Council for approval.

2.2 To amend the constitution so that proposed substantive changes to the constitution are 
reviewed by the Governance and Audit Committee, as well as Cabinet/other committees 
as appropriate, prior to submission to Council.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To consider the most appropriate process for implementing constitutional changes.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 N/A – this report presents an option for consideration rather than a firm proposal.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Approval of any changes to the Constitution, and to the terms of reference of any 
committee, are non-executive decisions reserved to the Council.

13



6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Mark Stinson, Executive Manager for Governance
Telephone Number: 07899 061277
Email: mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

14



Breckland Council

Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2019

8 August 2019

15

A
genda Item

 9



2

Contents

Executive 
Summary

01

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

02

Financial Statement 
Audit

03

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited 
body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk). 

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of 
auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, 
as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, 
you may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, 
London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any 
aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

05
Other Reporting 

Issues

06

07

Value for 
Money

04
Focused on your 

future

Audit Fees

16

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


3

Executive Summary01

17



4

Executive Summary

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Breckland Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended 31 March 2019.  
Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:

► Financial statements

Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 
March 2019 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended.

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual Accounts.

Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources.

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest. 

► Written recommendations to the Council, which should 
be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report. 

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit 
procedures on the consolidation pack.

18



5

Executive Summary (cont’d)

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of the 
Council communicating significant findings resulting from 
our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 22 July 2019. 

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit Office’s 
2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 31 July 2019.

In January 2020 we will also issue a report to those charged with governance of the Council summarising the certification work we have undertaken.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Mark Hodgson

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

19



6

Purpose and Responsibilities02

20



7

Purpose and Responsibilities

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this Annual Audit Letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the publ ic, the key issues arising from our work, 
which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2018/19 Audit Results Report to the 25 July 2019 Governance and Audit Committee, 
representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant for the Council.

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2018/19 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 31 January 2019 and is conducted in accordance with the National 
Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2018/19 financial statements; and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on you Whole of Government Accounts return. The Council 
is below the specified audit threshold of £500 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council 
reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

21



8

Financial Statement Audit03

22



9

What was the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability 
to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.

One area susceptible to manipulation is the capitalisation of revenue expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment 
given the extent of the Council’s capital programme. The specific procedures undertaken to address this are set out 
on the next page. This page details the standard procedures we undertake to respond to the risk of fraud and error on 
every engagement.

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

What are our conclusions?

We did not identify any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material management override. 
We did not identify any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied or any management bias in accounting estimates. 
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or outside the Council’s normal course of business.

What did we do and what judgements were we focused on?

In order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

• Identified fraud risks during the planning stages;

• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks;

• Documented our understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes over fraud;

• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud; 

• Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements;

• Reviewed the accounting estimates for evidence of management bias; and

• Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

ISA 240 mandates we perform procedures on: accounting estimates, significant unusual transactions and journal entries to ensure they are appropriate and in line with 
expectations of the business

Significant Risk

The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial management and 
financial health.

We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, Internat ional Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 31 July 2019.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 25 July 2019 Governance and Audit Committee.

Financial Statement Audit

23



10

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Significant risk

What was the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the 
public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states 
that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure 
recognition. 

As the Council is more focused on its financial position over medium term, we have considered the risk of 
manipulation to be more prevalent in the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure on Property, Plant and 
Equipment given the extent of the Council’s capital programme (see above).

Incorrect capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure

What are our conclusions?

Our testing did not identify any items incorrectly classified as capital expenditure.

What did we do and what judgements were we focused on?

In order to address this risk we carried out a range of procedures including:

• Obtaining an analysis of capital additions in the year, reconciling to the Fixed Assets Register (FAR), and reviewing the descriptions to identify whether there are any 
potential items that could be revenue in nature; 

• Performing sample testing on additions to Property, Plant and Equipment, ensuring that they had been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct 
value, to identify any revenue items that have been inappropriately capitalised; and

• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger moving expenditure items from revenue codes to capital codes.

Significant Risk

24



11

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Areas of Audit Focus
What was the risk?

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP) represent significant balances in 
the Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. 
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-
end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

The Council will engage an external expert (valuer) who will apply a number of complex assumptions to these assets. 
Assets are assessed annually to identify whether there is any indication of impairment.

As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the valuer are subject to estimation, there is a risk that 
these assets may be misstated.

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of experts and assumptions 
underlying fair value estimates.

Valuation of land and 
buildings – inherent risk

What are our conclusions?

Following full consideration of their work, we placed reliance on the Council’s valuation expert.

We did not identify any material misstatements from inappropriate judgements being applied to the property valuation estimates. 

Our consideration of the annual cycle of valuations did not identify any issues with the implemented plan or with the movement on assets not revalued in year.

What did we do and what judgements were we focused on?

• We have considered the work performed by the Council’s valuer (Valuation Office Agengy), including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their 
professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• We have undertaken sample testing key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per 
square metre);

• We have considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE. We 
also considered whether there were any specific changes to assets and that these had been communicated to the valuer;

• Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 and confirmed that the remaining asset base is not materially misstated;

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and

• Tested accounting entries had been correctly processed in the financial statements.

25



12

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Areas of Audit Focus

What was the risk?

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive disclosures within 
its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Norfolk 
County Council.

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed 
on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2018 this totalled £41.609 million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an 
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. 

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the 
assumptions underlying fair value estimates. 

Pension Liability Valuation 
– inherent risk

What are our conclusions?

We assessed and were satisfied with the competency and objectivity of the Council’s actuary. EY pensions team and PwC (Consulting Actuary to the NAO) reviewed the 
work of the actuaries and have deemed the assumptions used to be reasonable. 

A national issue resulted in a relatively late change to the pension fund accounts and IAS 19 fund liability disclosure.  This related to legal rulings regarding age 
discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transitional arrangements, commonly described as the McCloud ruling. Revised actuarial reports provided by 
the actuaries showed an increase in the liability of £0.925 million to the Council’s Pension Liabilities as a result of the adjustments, with further associated disclosure 
added to recognise this as a source of estimation uncertainty and an adjusted post balance sheet event. The impact of the Guaranteed Minimum Pension ruling was also 
taken into account in these adjustments.  

What did we do and what judgements were we focused on?

We have performed the following procedures:

• Liaised with the auditors of Norfolk Pension Fund, and obtained assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Breckland Council;

• Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including the assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries 
commissioned by National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considered any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within Breckland Council’s financial statements in relation to IAS19.

26



13

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Areas of Audit Focus

What was the risk?

The CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting (the Code) requires the Council to comply with the 
requirements of two new accounting standards for 2018/19. These standards are:

IFRS 9 financial instruments 
This new accounting standard will change how financial assets are classified and measured, how the impairment of 
financial assets are calculated; and the disclosure requirements for financial assets. 
There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the 2018/19 Code provides guidance on the 
application of IFRS 9. However, until the Guidance Notes are issued and any statutory overrides are confirmed there 
remains some uncertainty on the accounting treatment.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of performance obligations under customer contracts 
and the linking of income to the meeting of those performance obligations.
The 2018/19 Code provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful flow diagram and 
commentary on the main sources of LG revenue and how they should be recognised.
The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large revenue streams like council tax, non 
domestic rates and government grants will be outside the scope of IFRS 15. However where that standard is 
relevant, the recognition of revenue will change and new disclosure requirements introduced.

New Accounting 
Standards – inherent risk

What are our conclusions?

We did not identify any issues with the implementation of the new accounting standards.

What did we do and what judgements were we focused on?

• Assessed the Council’s implementation arrangements and impact assessment of the application of the new standard, transitional adjustments and accounting for 
2018/19;

• Considered the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;

• Reviewed the new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; 

• Considered the application to the Council’s revenue streams, and where relevant tested to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a performance 
obligation; and

• Checked additional disclosure requirements.

27



14

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial statements as a 
whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £1.4 million (2017/18: £1.5 million), which is 2% of gross expenditure on provision of 
services reported in the accounts of £46.9 million adjusted for the surplus on trading undertakings and non domestic rates tariff and 
levy payment.

We consider gross expenditure on provision of services to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in assessing the 
financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of 
£68,000 (2017/18: £74,000)

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we developed an 
audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits: reduced materiality level of £5,000 applied in line with bandings 
disclosed.

► Related party transactions and members allowances: reduced materiality level applied equal to the reporting threshold.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations. 

Our application of materiality

28



Value for Money04

29



16

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is 
known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper 
arrangements for 
securing value for 

money
Working 

with 
partners 
and third 
parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Informed 
decision 
making

We did not identify any significant risks in relation to these criteria.

We did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

We therefore issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 31 July 2019.

30



17

Other Reporting Issues05

31



18

Other Reporting Issues

Whole of Government Accounts

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the 
course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any incons istencies with the other information of 
which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2018/19 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

32



19

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to Governance and Audit Committee on 25 July 2019. In our professional judgement the 
firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and professional 
requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control during our audit.

33



20

Focused on your future06

34



21

Focused on your future

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduces the application of new accounting standards in future years. The impact on the 
Council is summarised in the table below.

Standard Issue Impact

IFRS 16 Leases It is currently proposed that IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority 
accounts from the 2020/21 financial year. 

Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the current leasing standard; 
IAS 17, for local authorities who lease a large number of assets the new 
standard will have a significant impact, with nearly all current leases being 
included on the balance sheet. 

There are transitional arrangements within the standard and although the 
2020/21 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be 
issued, CIPFA have issued some limited provisional information which begins 
to clarify what the impact on local authority accounting will be. Whether any 
accounting statutory overrides will be introduced to mitigate any impact 
remains an outstanding issue.

Until the 2020/21 Accounting Code is issued and any statutory 
overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty in this 
area. 

However what is clear is that the Council will need to undertake a 
detailed exercise to identify all of its leases and capture the relevant 
information for them. The Council must therefore ensure that all 
lease arrangements are fully documented.

IASB Conceptual 
Framework 

The revised IASB Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Conceptual 
Framework) will be applicable for local authority accounts from the 2019/20 
financial year. 

This introduces;

– new definitions of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
– updates for the inclusion of the recognition process and criteria and new   
provisions on derecognition
– enhanced guidance on accounting measurement bases
- enhanced objectives for financial reporting and the qualitative aspects of 
financial information.

The conceptual frameworks is not in itself an accounting standard and as such 
it cannot be used to override or disapply the requirements of any applicable 
accounting standards. 

However, an understanding of concepts and principles can be helpful to 
preparers of local authority financial statements when considering the 
treatment of transactions or events where standards do not provide specific 
guidance, or where a choice of accounting policies is available. 

It is not anticipated that this change to the Code will have a material 
impact on Local Authority financial statements. 

However, Authorities will need to undertake a review to determine 
whether current classifications and accounting remains valid under 
the revised definitions.

35



22

Audit Fees07

36



23

Audit Fees

Our final fee for 2018/19 as expected, at the scale fee set by the PSAA and reported in our 17 July 2019 Annual Results Report. 

Description

Final Fee 2018/19

£’s

Planned Fee 2018/19

£’s

Scale Fee 2018/19

£’s

Final Fee 2017/18

£’s

Total Audit Fee – Code work 36,653 (Note 1) 36,653 34,293 47,789

Total Audit Fee – Certification of claims and 
returns

TBC (Note 2) 12,765 N/A 14,959

Note 1 – The 2018/19 final fee includes a scale fee variation, approved by both management and the PSAA Ltd, for the costs associated with the audit of the Council’s 
group accounts. 

Note 2 – From 2018/19, the Council is responsible for appointing their own reporting accountant to undertake the work on their claims in accordance with the 
instructions determined by the relevant grant paying body. 

• As your appointed auditor for the financial statements audit, we are pleased that for 2018/19 the Council has appointed us to act as reporting accountants in relation 
to the housing benefit subsidy claim. There is therefore no scale fee prescribed by PSAA as it is now no longer within their remit.

• The planned fee shown, is based on the level of error within the current claim and the work required to certify that. This may change dependent on the level of error 
within the claim under review.

We will confirm our final fees following the completion of our work and report this within our Annual Grant Certification Report.

37



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

38



Appendix 1 

1

Self-assessment of good practice

This evaluation will support an assessment against recommended practice to inform and support the Audit Committee. This is a high-level review 
that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police. Where an Audit 
Committee has a high degree of performance against the good practice principle’s then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly based 
and has in place knowledgeable membership. These are essential factors in developing an effective Audit Committee. 

Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No
Audit Committee purpose and governance

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee?
2 Does the audit committee report directly to full authority?
3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s position 

statement?
4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and accepted across the authority?
5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in meeting the requirements of good governance?
6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its performance operating satisfactorily?

Functions of the committee
7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core area identified in CIPFA’s position 

statement?
- Good governance
- Assurance framework
- Internal audit
- External audit
- Financial reporting 
- Risk management
- Value for money or best value
- Counter fraud and corruption 

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and 
that adequate consideration has been given to all core areas?

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake them?

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans in place to address this?

39

A
genda Item

 10



Appendix 1 

2

11 Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not taking on any decision-making powers that are 
not in line with its core purpose?
Membership and support

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the board been selected?
This should include:

- Separation from the executive
- An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the membership
- A size of committee that is not unwieldy
- Where independent members are used, that they have been appointed using appropriate process

13 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and skills?
14 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings and training?
15 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the core knowledge and skills framework and 

found to be satisfactory?
16 Does the committee have good working relationships with key people and organisations, including external 

audit, internal audit and the chief finance officer?
17 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee provided?

Effectiveness of the committee
18 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from those interacting with the committee or relying 

on its work?
19 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to the organisation?
20 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of weakness?

40



Appendix 1 

3

Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

This assessment tool helps Audit Committee members to consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be 
considered effective, the Audit Committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements.

Assessment Key:

5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting the improvement across all aspects of 
this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable.

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting improvement across some aspects of this 
area.

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some evidence that demonstrates their 
impact but there are also significant gaps.

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this support is limited.

1 no evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area. 

Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Self-evaluation examples, areas of strength & weakness Assessment 1-5

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision making
Contributing to the 
development of an effective 
control environment
Supporting the establishment 
of arrangements for the 

41



Appendix 1 

4

governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks
Advising on the adequacy of 
the assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively
Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence
Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements
Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money
Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruption risks

42



BRECKLAND COUNCIL GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME

Meeting Date Agenda Item
3 October 2019

Self Assessment - verbal report
Annual Audit Letter
Process for amending the Constitution
Member training: Treasury Management (immediately
following the meeting)

12 December 2019
Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2019-20
Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 2020-21
Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
Follow Up on Internal Audit Recommendations 
Self Assessment report
Q2 Strategic Risk Report

13 February 2019

43

A
genda Item

 11



Officer Responsible

Head of Internal Audit
External Audit
Executive Manager for Governance

Link Asset Services

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer)
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer)
Head of Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit
Executive Director, Strategy & Governance

BRECKLAND COUNCIL GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME

44


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Process for amending the Constitution
	9 Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2019
	10 CIPFA Audit Committee Self-Assessment
	11 Work Programme

